Indian Furniture Products Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022
(All amounts in Z lacs, unless stated otherwise)

Notes As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
{ ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a)  Property, plant and equipment 3(a) 483.22 577.82
(b)  Investment property 4 11,948.06 11,973.20
(c)  Other intangible assets 3(b) -
{d)  Financial assets
(i) Investments 5(a) 105.92 1,462.42
{ii) Loans 5(b) 1,125.00 1,125.00
(iif} Other financial assets 5(c) 51.04 433.40
(e)  Other non-current assets 6 185.38 162.24
() Non-current tax assets (net) 119.76 131.89
14,018.38 15,865.97
Current assets
(@) Inventories 7 316.96 805.20
(b)  Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 8 1,514.01 1,166.52
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 9 69.35 84.94
(iii) Bank balances other than (i) above 10 43.01 141.04
(iv) Other financial assets 5(c) 375.61 -
(v) Investments 5(d) 30.11 -
(¢)  Other current assets 6 157.54 150.29
2,506.59 2,356.99
Total assets 16,524.97 18!222.96
I EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a)  Equity share capital 11 7,009.95 7,009.95
(b)  Other equity 12 ___ {5,197.00) (4,475.57)
1,812.95 2,534.38
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
(a)  Financial liabilities
Borrowings 13 9,3585.77 8,492.73
(b)  Provisions 18 148.23 163.47
(c)  Deferred tax liabilities(net) 19 _2,297.29 2,301.52
11,801.29 —— 10,847.72
Current liabilities
(@)  Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 14 1,200.00 1,466.67
(ii) Trade payables 15
-Total outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small
Enterprises N ”
-Total t_)utstandmg dues of cre.dltors other than Micro 785.25 1,289.52
Enterprises and Small Enterprises
(iii) Other financial liabilities 16 288.61 1,285.54
(b} Other current liabilities 17 635.31 692.09
{c)  Provisions 18 1.56 7.04
2,910.73 4,740.86
Total equity and liabilities 16,524.97 18,222.96

Summary of significant accounting polices 3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

ForR S J V & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Indian Eurniture Products Limited
Firm’s Registration No.: 02881S
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S Venkateswara Rao Alok Banerjee Nishant Dalal
Partner Director Director
Membership No.: 027713 DIN,No. 01371033 DIN No. 08972330
, A
uchit Rawal Sandeep Kumar
Place: Chennai (Company Secretary) (Chief Financial Officer)

Date: 4th May 2022 M.No A56748




Indian Fumiture Products Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2022
(Al amounts in ¥ lacs, unless stated otherwise)

| Revenue
Revenue from operations
Other income
Total Revenue (l)

Il EXPENSES
Cost of raw materials and components consumed/Sold
Purchase of traded goods
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and traded
Empioyee benefits expense
Finance costs
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Other expenses
Total expenses (1)

i Profit/ (Loss) before tax (1)
IV Tax expense:
Current Tax
Deferred Tax
V Profit/{Loss) for the year (II-IV)

VI Other Comprehensive loss
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or ioss
Re-measurement losses on defined benefit plans
Income tax effect

Total other comprehensive loss
VIl Totat comprehensive Profit/(Loss) for the year (V + V1)
Vill Loss per share (in g)

(1) Basic

(2) Diluted

Summary of significant accounting polices

The accompanying notes are an intearal part of the financial statements.

Notes For the year For the year ended
ended 31 March 2021
31 March 2022

20 165.24 262.48
21 1,205.74 850.79
1,370.98 913.27
22 41.02 4.59
22.1 0.84 107.67
23 421.69 210.97
24 26.58 25.28
25 1,295.85 1,327.63
26 118.68 124.24
27 191.72 155.30
2,096.38 1,955.68
(725.40) {1,042.41)

19
- 3.46
(4.23) 13.17)
(721.17) {1,042.70)
19 0.26 (0.08)
(0.26) 0.08
{721.43) {1,042.62)
28 (1.03) (1.49)
28 (1.03) (1.49)

3

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.

ForR S J V & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 028818

S Venkateswara Rao
Partner
Membership No.: 027713

Place: Chennai
Date: 4th May 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Indian Furniture Products Limited

Alok Banerjee

Director

DIN No. 01371033
”

Suchit Rawai
(Company Secretary)
M.No A56748
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Director
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Indian Furniture Products Limited

Cash Flow Statement for the period ended 31st March 2022
(All amounts in Z lacs, unfess stated otherwise)

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 Mar 2022 31 Mar 2021
A Cash flows from operating activities

Loss before tax {725.40) (1,042.41)
Adjustments to reconcile loss before tax to net cash fiows:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 118.68 124.24
Balances written off - 0.18
Interest income (52.05) (148.06)
Unclaimed balances, provisions and liabilities written back (601.24) (4.84)
Finance costs 1,295.85 1,327.63
Loss on sale of FA 0.24 -
Profit on sale of investment (57.26)

Provision for warranties 0.19 0.34
Provision for doubtful receivables 82.69 L -
Operating profit/{loss) before working capital changes 61.70 25707

Working capital adjustments:
Movement in inventories 488.24 220.66

Movement in trade receivables (430.18) (677.15)
Movement in loans and advances (382.36) (3.01)
Movement in other current assets (21.39) 8.58
Movement in trade payables 96.71 {148.28)
Movement in other liabilities (196.40) 142.16
Movement in provisions (10.72) 0.99
Cash generated from operations (394.41) (199.97)

Income tax paid 12.13 198.39

Net cash fiows from operating activities (382.28) (1.58)
B Cash flows from investing activities
Redemption of ICD - 1,050.00
Purchase/Sale of financial instruments 1,383.32 (1,413.28)
Redemption of / investment in deposits (net) 480.39 472,79
Proceeds from sale of Fixed Asset 0.82 -
Interest received 58.69 463.30
Net cash flows from/{used in) investing activities 1,923.22 = 572.81
C  Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from/(repayment of) short-term borrowings (net) - (100.00)
Repayment of non-current borrowings (11,513.28) (2,863.74)
Proceeds received from non-current borrowings 12,068.26 3,201.00
Interest paid (2,111.53) |795.38)
Net cash flows (used in) / from financing activities (1,656.53) (658.12)
D Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+ B + C) {15.59) 13.41
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 84.94 71.83
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 69.35 84.94
Components of cash and cash equivalents as at year end
Cash in hand 1.09 0.91
Cheques in hand - -
Balances with scheduled banks
- in current accounts 68.26 84.03
- in deposit accounts - -
69.35 84.94

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

For RS J V & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.; 02881S

For and on behaif of the Board of Dirsctors of
Indian Furniture Preducts Limited

fo”

Alok Banerjee
Director

Nishant Dalal
S Venkateswara Rao
Partner

Membership No.: 027713

Director

FRN. No: ozsslsﬁ\
3. |
G\ CHENNAL3. ) £

Sandeep Kumar
(Chief Financial Officer)

Place: Chennai
Date: 4th May 2022

- (Company Secretary)
M.No A56748
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Indian Fumiture Products Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March 2022
(All amounts in Z lacs, unless stated otherwise)

(a) Equity share capital

Equity shares of 2 10 each Issued, subscribed and fully paid

Balance at the beginning of the Changes inEquity | R dbalance at | Changes in equity |Balance at the end of the current
reporting period Share Capital due to the beginning of the | share caplital during reporting period
prior period errors current reporting the current year
period <{
As at March 21, 2021 ] - - As at March 31, 2022
No of Shares Amount - - - No of Shares | Amount ]
7,00,99,470 | 7,009.95 N [ 70089470 7.009.95 |
{2) Previous reporting period
As at March 31, 2020 I i . I [ As atMarch 31, 2021
No of Shares Amount - - - | No of Shares
70099470 l 7.009.95 e IR == 7.00 99 470

B. Other equity

eriod
Share | ~ Equity Reserves and surplus = _j— Other Money Total |
pplicati p it Securities premium |Other Reserves comprehensive ived
money of 7% Redeemable reserve R it Retained Effective | against
pending convertible non- gainf(loss) on defined| earnings portion of cash share
allotment | cumulative preference benefit plan flow hedges warrants ‘
= shares
Balance at the beginning of . 771.69 §3.33 {26.28) (5,274.31) (4,475.57)
the current reporting period ‘
las at April 01, 2021} |
Profit/lioss) for the year | (721.17) | 72147)]
Other comprehensive income (0.26) | (0.26)|
for the year |
Total comprehensive income {0.26) (721.17) | 721 .43f|
for the vear [ | !
Any "‘,“‘" cha nge: | | . fe
Securities premium proceeds —l
received on issue of equity ‘
shares i
Balance at the end of the - 771.69 53.33 {26.54) (5,995.48) - - (6,197.00)
current reporting period (as alJ
[March 31, 2022) - . ——— S | S e B — J_ — S | J

B. Other equity
(2) Previous reporting period

|Particulars Share Equity B Reserves and surplus = ] Other Money |  Total
pplicati T Securities premium [Other Reserves p i
money of 7% Redeemable reserve R ement R d Effective against ‘
pending convertible non- gain/{loss) on defined eamings portion of cash share
aliotment | cumulative preference benefit plan flow hedges warrants |
shares ‘1
Balance at the beginning of - 771.69 63.33 (26.36) (4,231.61) (3,432.95)
the current reporting period
s at April 01, 2020
Profit/{loss) for the year | = (1,042.70) 1,042.70)
Other comprehensive income 0.08 . r 0.08
for the year |
Total comprehensive income 0.08 (1,042.70) | [ (1,042.52)1
for the vear | !
Any other change: = i = | ] = | |
Securities premium proceeds | [
received on issue of equity
hares e S N S I et}
Balance at the end of the - 771.69 53.33 (26.28) (5,274.31) . . {4,475.67)
current reporting period (as atJ
LMarch M.2021) 0 | R S| See— — |

This is the Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date.
ForR $ J V & Associates For and,an behalf of the &

Chartered Accountants Indiayf Fumiture Products Limited
Firm’s Registration No.: 028818

Alok Banerjee Nishant Dalal
Director Director
DIN No. 01371033

§ Venkateswara Rao
Pariner

Membership No.: 027713
Place: Chennai

chit Rawal Sandeep Kumar
Date: 4th May 2022

{Company Secretary) (Chief Financial Officery".
M.No A56748
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Indian Furniture Products Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31
March 2022

1.1

Corporate information

The financial statements of "Indian Furniture Products Limited” (“the Company” or “IFPL") are for the year
ended 31 March 2022. Indian Furniture Products Limited ("the Company®) is a public company domiciled in
India and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The registered office
of the Company is located at G-106 Sidco Industrial Estate, Kakkalur, Thiruvallur, Tamil Nadu - 602003

The Company is engaged in manufacturing and trading Ready to Assemble Furniture (RTAF). The Company
markets the product under the brand name of Style Spa and Zuari.

The Company is a subsidiary of Zuari Global Limited. Information on related party relationships of the
Company is provided in Note 31.

Application of Indian Accounting Standards

Allthe Ind AS issued and notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) till the financial statements are authorized (refer note 41) have been
considered while preparing these financial statements.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard
(Ind AS') and comply with requirements of Ind AS, stipulations contained in Schedule 11} (revised) as
applicable under Section 133 of the Act, the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as
amended from time to time and other pronouncements/ provisions of applicable laws.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis. except for certain financial assets
and non-financial assets measured at fair value or net realisable value as applicable.

The financial statements of the Company are presented in Indian Rupees (), which is also its functional
currency and all amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest
lacs as per the requirement of Schedule Il to the Act, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of classification of current and non-current

Assets and Liabilities in the balance sheet have been classified as either current or non-current based upon
the requirements of Schedule IIi notified under the Companies Act, 2013.

An asset has been classified as current if

(a) it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company's normai operating
cycle; or

(b) it is held primarity for the purpose of being traded; or (c) it is expected to be realized within twelve months
after the reporting date: or

(d) it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting date. All other assets have been classified as non-current.

A liability has been classified as current when (a) it is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal
operating cycle; or

(b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded: or

(c) itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date: or
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Indian Furniture Products Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31
March 2022

{d) the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting date. All other liabilities have been classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

An operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash
or cash equivaients.

¢. Property, plant and equipment (‘PPE’)

PPE and capital work-in progress are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and
borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met.

Cost comprises the purchase price and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition for the intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.
The cost of an item of PPE shall be recognised as an asset if, and only if:

a} itis probabie that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity; and

b) the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of PPE is added to its book value only if it increased the future
benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses
on existing assets, including day- to- day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts,
are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year during which such expenses are incurred.
Expenditure directly relating to construction activity is capitalized. Indirect expenditure incurred during
construction period is capitalized as a part of indirect construction cost to the extent the expenditure is related
to construction or is incidental thereto. Other indirect costs incurred during-the construction periods which are
not related to construction activity nor are incidental thereto are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Nature of tangible asset Useful life (years)

Buildings 30
Electrical installations 10
Plant and machinery 10-15
Furniture and fittings 10
Office equipments 5
Vehicles 8
Computers 3-6
Software 3
Leasehold improvements 3

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed
at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

d. Intangible assets

Intangible assets in the nature of computer software are amortised over three years on a straight line basis
based on management estimates,

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future
economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as
appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible



Indian Furniture Products Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31
March 2022

assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of
carrying value of another asset.

e. Investment in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of
an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of
the parties sharing control.

The considerations made in determining whether significant influence or joint control are similar to those
necessary to determine control over the subsidiaries. Investment in joint ventures is measured at cost.

Leases

As inception of the Contract, the Company considers whether a contract is, or contains a lease. A lease is
defined as ‘a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset {the underlying asset) for
a period of time in exchange for consideration’.

Classification of leases
The assessment of the lease is based on several factors, including, but not limited to, transfer of ownership
of leased asset at end of lease term, lessee’s option to extend/purchase etc.

Recognition and initial measurement

At lease commencement date, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the
balance sheet. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial measurement of the
lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the Company, an estimate of any costs to dismantle and
remove the asset at the end of the lease (if any), and any lease payments made in advance of the lease
commencement date (net of any incentives received).

Subsequent measurement

The Company depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement date
to the earlier of the end of the usefu! life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The Company
also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist.

At lease commencement date, the Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease
payments unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is readily
available or the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments included in the measurement of the
lease liability are made up of fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) and variable payments
based on an index or rate. Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made
and increased for interest. It is re-measured to reflect any reassessment or modification, or if there are
changes in in-substance fixed payments. When the lease liability is re-measured, the corresponding
adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset.

The Company has elected to account for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets using the practical
expedients. Instead of recognizing a right-of-use asset and lease liability, the payments in relation to these
are recognized as an expense in statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

g. Impairment of non-financial assets

In assessing impairment, management estimates the recoverable amount of each asset or cash-generating
units based on expected future cash flows and uses an interest rate to discount them. Estimation uncertainty
relates to assumptions about future operating results and the determination of a suitable discount rate.
/'—"“‘\\\\
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Indian Furniture Products Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31
March 2022

h. Foreign currency transactions and translations

Functional and presentation currency
The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also it's functional currency.

Initial Recognition

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency
amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the
transaction.

Conversion

Foreign currency monetary items are translated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rate at the date of the initial transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair vaiue
denominated in a foreign currency are, translated using the exchange rates that existed when the fair value
was determined.

Exchange differences

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting Company's monetary items
at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in previous
financial statements, are recognised as income or as expenses in the year in which they arise.

The gain or loss arising on transiation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items
whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss,
respectively).

i. Contingent Liabilities

A contingent fiability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non~occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there
is a liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not
recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements. Contingent assets are
only disclosed when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the entity.

j- Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company
expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The
expense relating to a provision is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss, net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Warranty Provision

The company estimates the liability for the purposes of recognising and measuring the provisions for warranty
obligations, in relation to repair or replace the items that fail to perform satisfactorily during the warranty
period. Warranty provisions are recognised when the risks and rewards of ownership of the goods are sold
or service is provided. In order to determine the level of provision, various factors are taken into consideration,



Indian Furniture Products Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31
March 2022

including estimations based on past experience with the nature and amount of claims, technical evaluations
etc. These estimations also involve assessing the future level of potential repair costs other factors. Provisions
for warranties are adjusted regularly to take account of new circumstances and the impact of any changes
recognised in the income statement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre - tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as finance cost. No reimbursements are expected.

k. Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer and excludes
amounts collected on behalf of third parties, if any. The Company recognizes revenue when it transfers control
over a product or service to a customer.

To determine whether to recognize revenue, the Company follows a 5-step process:

Identifying the contract with a customer

Identifying the performance obligations

Determining the transaction price

Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations
Recognizing revenue when/as performance obligation(s) are satisfied.

L e

Identifying the performance obligations

Under Ind AS 115, the Company must evaluate the separability of the promised goods or services based on
whether they are ‘distinct’. A promised good or service is ‘distinct’ if both:

. the customer benefits from the item either on its own or together with other readily availabie
resources, and
. it is ‘separately identifiable’ (i.e. the Company does not provide a significant service integrating,

modifying or customizing it)
Determining the transaction price

Under Ind AS 115, the Company shall consider the terms of the contract and its customary business practices
to determine the transaction price. The transaction price excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
The consideration promised include fixed amounts, variable amounts, or both.

Where the Company has a right to consideration from a customer in an amount that corresponds directly with
the value to the customer of the performance completed to date, the Company recognizes revenue in the
amount to which it has a right to invoice.

Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations

The transaction price is allocated to the separately identifiable performance obligations on the basis of their
standalone selling price (in case of storage and distribution contracts where the customer pays a fixed rate
per item for all the services provided). For services that are not provided separately, the standaione selling
price is estimated using adjusted market assessment approach.




Indian Furniture Products Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory Information for the year ended 31
March 2022 -

Recognizing revenue when/as performance obligation(s) are satisfied

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will fiow to the Company
and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made.

The company recognises revenue when it transfers control of a product or service to a customer. The
company recognises revenue from the following major sources:-

Sale of goods:

Revenue from sale of goods is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer
and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. It is measured at fair value consideration received
or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates. The Company recognises
revenue when it transfers control over a product i.e. when goods are delivered at the delivery point (as per
terms of the agreement).

Rendering of Services:

According to Ind AS 115, revenue is recognised over time (percentage of completion) either when the
performance creates an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created (e.g. work in progress) or
when the performance creates an asset with no alternative use and an enforceable right to payment as
performance is completed to date has been secured. Revenue is also recognised over time if the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits from goods and services as performed.

Customers are invoiced periodically {generally on monthly basis). Income in respect of service contracts are
recognised in statement of profit and loss when control of respective service has been transferred to
customer, which is done over time in case of Indian Furniture Products Limited.

Other items of revenue

Interest income: Revenue is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and the applicable interest rate. Interest income is included under the head “other income” in the
statement of profit and loss.

Inventories

The cost of inventories shall comprise all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories at their present location and condition. Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and
net realizable value.

The cost of various categories of various inventories are determined as follows:

{a) Stores and spares, raw materials and packing materials: at moving weighted average basis.

{(b) Work in progress and finished goods: Cost includes direct materials and labour and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity.

(¢) Cost of finished goods includes excise duty. Cost is determined on a moving weighted average basis.

Traded goods are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost include cost of purchase and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on a
weighted average basis.

Materials and other items held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the
finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost.



Indian Furniture Products Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31
March 2022

Net realisable value is estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

m. Income Tax

Tax expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax
except the ones recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year and is computed in
accordance with relevant tax regulations. Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or
loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between carrying amount of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and corresponding amount used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax
assets on unrealised tax loss are recognised to the extent that it is probable that the underlying tax loss will
be utilised against future taxable income. This is assessed based on the Company’s forecast of future
operating resuits, adjusted for significant non-taxable income and expenses and specific limits on the use of
any unused tax loss. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside Statement of
Profit and Loss is recognised outside Statement of Profit or Loss {either in other comprehensive income or in
equity).

n. Retirement and other employee benefits
All employee benefits payabie/available within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-
term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages and bonus etc., are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Provident Fund:

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no
obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognises contribution
payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the
contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the
contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognised as a liability after deducting the
contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received
before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognised as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will
lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Gratuity:

Gratuity is a defined benefit scheme. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is
determined using the projected unit credit method. The Company recognises termination benefit as a liability
and an expense when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obiigation. If the termination benefits fall due more than twelve
months after the balance sheet date, they are measured at present value of future cash flows using the
discount rate determined by reference to market yields at the balance sheet date on government bonds.

Re-measurements, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet
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Indian Furniture Products Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31
March 2022

with & corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCl in the period in which they occur. Re-
measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.

The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the

Statement of profit and loss:

*  Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and
non-routine settlements; and

* Netinterest expense or income

Leave encashment:

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term
employee benefit which are computed based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method
at the period end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the Statement of Profit and Loss and are
not deferred. The Company presents the leave as a current liability in the balance sheet to the extent it does
not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for twelve months after the reporting date. Where
Company has the unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the settlement for a period beyond twelve
months, the balance is presented as a non-current liability.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilised within the next twelve months, is treated as short term
employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount
that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entittement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

All other employee benefits payable/available within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as
short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, bonus, etc. are recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

o. Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs include interest, amortisation of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement
of borrowings and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are
Tegarded as an adjustment to the interest cost, Borrowing costs, if any, directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use or sale are capitalized, if any. All other borrowing costs are expensed to the Statement of Profit
and Loss in the period in which they occur.

p. Investments
Investments that are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than a year are classified as

current investments. All other investments are classified as non-current investments. All investments are
carried at fair value.

d. Dividend

Dividend declared is recognised as a liability only after it is approved by the shareholders in the general
meeting.

r. Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value which is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the
asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

« In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
= In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: ~e Pro=~



Indian Furniture Products Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31
March 2022

Level 1 - Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is directly or indirectly observable; and

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is unobservable.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs. For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the balance sheet on a
recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy
by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy
as explained above.

s. Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Ali financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place (reguiar way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the
date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

a) Debt instruments at amortised cost

b) Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

¢} Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
d) Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included
in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss.

This category generally applies to trade and other receivables. P
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Indian Furniture Products Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31
March 2022

Debt instrument at FVTOCI

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets, and

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPP!.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting
date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognised in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However,
the Company recognises interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss
in the P&L. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified
from the equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income
using the EIR method.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held
for trading.

For all other equity instruments, the company may make an irrevocable election to present in other
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The company makes such election on an
instrument by - instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to
P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within
equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised
in the P&L.

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets)

is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the balance sheet) when:

a) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

b) The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor
transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of
the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower
of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the company
could be required to repay. —
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31
March 2022

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 108, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities,
deposits, trade receivables and bank balance
b) Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss aliowance on Trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather,
it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not
increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has
increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument
improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the
entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life
of afinancial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company'’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including financial
guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are
classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category
also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss. /,:q\ o
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Indian Furniture Products Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31
March 2022

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as
such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities
designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risks are recognised in
OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to statement of profit and loss. However, the
Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at
fair value through profit and loss.

De-recognition
A financial fiability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Embedded derivatives
An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument that also includes a non-derivative
host contract — with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar
to a standalone derivative. An embedded derivative causes some or all of the cash flows that otherwise would
be required by the contract to be modified according to a specified interest rate, financial instrument price,
commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable,
provided in the case of a nonfinancial variable that the variable is not specific to a party to the contract.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies
the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value
through profit or loss.

If the hybrid contract contains a host that is a financial asset within the scope of Ind AS 109, the Company
does not separate embedded derivatives. Rather, it applies the classification requirements contained in Ind
AS 109 to the entire hybrid contract. Derivatives embedded in all other host contracts are accounted for as
separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic characteristics and risks are not closely
related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or designated at fair value
though profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss, unless designated as effective hedging instruments.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
Derivative financial instrument

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts to hedge its foreign
currency risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried
as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss.
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31
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Derivative financial instruments - Forward exchange contracts entered into to hedge foreign currency
risk of an existing asset/ liability

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Company uses derivative financial instruments such as forward exchange contracts to hedge its foreign
currency risks. Such derivative contracts are marked to market on portfolio basis, and the net loss / gain, is
charged to the Statement of profit and loss.

u. Derivative instruments - Forward contract for firm commitment

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement
Derivative contracts entered for firm commitment, are marked to market on portfolio basis, and the net loss /
gain is charged/credited to the Statement of profit and loss.

v. Segment reporting policies
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments.

w. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand, cheques on hand and
short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of
cash and short-term deposits, as defined above.

x. Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year atiributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number
of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for
the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

y. Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet ifthere
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

z. Key sources of estimations

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with ind AS requires that the management of the
company makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of income and expenses of the
period, the reported balances of assets and liabilities and the disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as
of the date of the financial statements. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates include useful lives of property, plant and equipment, Intangible
assets, allowance for doubtful debts/advances, future obligations in respect of retirement benefit plans,
expected cost of completion of contracts, provision for rectification costs, fair value measurement etc.
Difference, if any, between the actual results and estimates is recognised in the period in which the results
are known. —
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indian Furniture Products Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31
March 2022

aa. Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements.
Estimates and assumptions are continuously evaluated and are based on management’'s experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

In particular, the Company has identified the following areas where significant judgements, estimates and
assumptions are required. Further information on each of these areas and how they impact the various
accounting policies are described below and also in the relevant notes to the financial statements. Changes
in estimates are accounted for prospectively.

i) Judgements
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, the management has made the following
Jjudgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

a) Contingencies
Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Company,
including legal, contractor, land access and other claims. By their nature, contingencies will be resolved only
when one or more uncertain future events occur or fail to occur. The assessment of the existence, and
potential quantum, of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgments and the use of
estimates regarding the outcome of future events.

b) Recognition of deferred tax
The extent to which deferred tax asset to be recognised is based on the assessment of the probability of the
future taxable income against which the deferred tax asset can be utilized.

i) Estimates and assumptions
-The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and
estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market change or circumstances
arising beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

a) Useful lives of depreciable assets

The Company reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable assets at each reporting date, based on
the expected utility of the assets.

b) Defined benefit obligation
The cost of the defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of such
obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the
discount rate, future trends salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. In view of the
complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive
to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

-~ \)‘e

/.\'
/R
&

3
i,
(=
<

%)

-

N\

\/'\

> o

NZ

o



Indian Furniture Products Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31
March 2022

¢) Inventories
The Company estimates the net realisable values of inventories, taking into account the most reliable
evidence available at each reporting date. The future realisation of these inventories may be affected by
future technology or other market-driven changes that may reduce future selling prices. Further, the Company
also estimate expected loss due to shrinkage, pilferage etc. along with NRV impact on old inventory taking
into account most reliable information available at the reporting date.

d) Impairment of assets
in assessing impairment, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of each asset or cash-generating
units based on expected future cash flows and uses an interest rate to discount them. Estimation uncertainty
relates to assumptions about future operating results and the determination of a suitable discount rate.

€) Fair value measurement of financial instruments
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques
including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but
where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these
factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

f) Rounding of amounts

All amount disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per
the requirement of schedule Ili, unless otherwise stated.
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Indian Furniture Products Limited
Summary of significant ing policies and other y information for the period ended 31st Mar 2022
(Al amounts in 7 lacs, unjess stafed otherwise)

3(a) : Property, plant and equipment

Particulars Land Building Plant and Computers  Furniture and Office Leasehold Electrical Vehicles Total
machinery fixtures i impt i i

As at 1 April 2020 $50.80 10.28 112.01 53.63 - 35.44 462 1,166.79
Additions - - - . - - - .
Disposals - - -

Transfer ta invesiment property [refer note 3(a)(ii)] - - - - - - - - = - .
As at 31 March 2021 - - 950.80 10.28 112.01 53.63 - 35.44 462 1,166.79
As at 1 April 2021 - - 950.80 10.28 112.01 53.63 - 35.44 4.62 1,166.79
Additions - - - . - -

Disposals - = 2220 005 - 0.07 ) - 2233
As at 31st March 2022 - - 928.60 10.23 112.01 53.56 - 35.44 4.62 1,144.48

Accumulated amortisation

As at 1 April 2020 - - 360.64 5.97 57.10 39.74 - 22.44 3.98 489.85
Charge for the year - 81.13 0.06 13.05 1.03 3.83 - 99.11
Disposals - - -

Adjustments {refer note 3(a)()] - - - - - - -
As at 31 March 2021 - - N7 6.03 70.16 40.77 - 26.27 3.96 588.96
As at 1 April 2021 - - 441.77 6.03 70.18 40.77 - 28.27 3.98 588.96
Charge for the year - - 78.30 0.03 11.45 (A - 3.05 - 93.55
Disposals - - 2115 0.05 0.07 21.27
As at 31st March 2022 - - 498.92 6.01 81.61 41.41 - 29.32 396 661.24
Carrying amount (net) . o

As at 31 March 2021 - - 509.03 4.25 41,86 12.86 - 9.18 0.66 577.82
As at 31st March 2022 = - 429.68 4.22 30.41 1215 - 6.11 0.66 483.22

Note 3(a)(i) : On 18 January 2017, the Company had entered into joint veniure agreement with Fabryki Mebli Forte 8.4, Poland whereby it had been agreed by the Company 1o transfer by way lease land, building and plant
and machinary lo Forte Furniture Products India Private Limited {the joint venlure company) with effect from 1 April 2017 and all the products will be manufactured and sold by the joint venture company. Based on terms of
agreement, lhe Company had written off assets which could not be leased 1o joint venture company.

Note 3(a)(i) : From 1 April 2017, Jand and building covered under the lease have been to in: property.

Note 3(a)(iii) : As on the transition date 01 April, 2015, the Company has adopled the fair value of the land based on an independent valuation report.
Note 3(a)(iv) : Refer Note 37 for infarmalion on Propenty, plant and equipment pledged as security by the Company.

Note 3(a)(v) : The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment during the years ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, Hence, the amount of change in gross and net canying amount due to
revalualion and impairment losses/reversals is nil.

Note 3(a)(v) : The Company does not have any Capital Work in Progress or intangible Asset under deveiopment , hence the discloures are not applicable
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3(b) : Other intangible assets

Particulars Software
Cost or Deemed Cost

As at 1 April 2020 42.58
Additions -
Deletion -
As at 31 March 2021 42.58
As at 1 April 2021 42,58
Additions -
Deletion -
As at 31st March 2022 42.58
Accumulated amortisation

As at 1 April 2020 42.58
Additions -
Deletion

As at 31 March 2021 42.58
As at 1 April 2021 42.58
Additions -
Deletion -
As at 31st March 2022 42.58
Carrying amount (net)

As at 31 March 2021 -
As at 31st March 2022

Refer Note 37 for information on other intangible assets pledged as security by the Company.

(This space is intentionally left blank) *



Indian Furniture Products Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the period ended 31st Mar 2022
(All amounts in ¥ lacs, unless stated otherwise)

4. Investment property
The changes in the camying value of investment properties are as follows :

As at
31-Mar-22
Gross block
As at 1 April 2020 -
Additions -
Adjusiments [Refer note 3(a) (i)] 12,161.80
Deletions -
As at 31 March 2021 12.161.80
As at 1 April 2021 12,161.80
Additions -
Deletions o -
As at 31st March 2022 12,161.80
Depreciation
As at 1 April 2020 163.47
Additions 2513
Adjustments [Refer note 3(a) (ii)}
Deletions .
As at 31 March 2021 188.60
As at 1 April 2021 188.60
Additions 2513
Deletions —
As at 31st March 2022 213.74
Net block
As at 31 March 2021 11 i973.20
As at 31st March 2022 11,948.08
() Amount recognised in statement of profit and joss for investment properties
Particulars For the year ended For the year
31 March 2022 ended
31 March 2021
Rental income# 444,83 44483
Direct operating expenses from property (including repairs and maintenance) that generating rental income -
Direct operating expense from property that did not generated rental income ) - C
Profit from investment property before depreciation 444.83 444 83
Depreciation (25.13) (25.13)
Profit arising from investment properties 419_=§=9_ 419.69

#Rental income recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss comprises of ¥444 83 lacs in respect of rental income from investment property and
%48.43 lacs in respect of plant and machinery respectively.

(ii} Fair value

Particulars As at As at
31st Mar 2022 31 Mar 2021
Fair value 12,124.04 12,124.04

Fair value hierarchy and valuation technique
a The Company obtains independent valuations for its investment properties at least annually. The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an
active market for similar properties. Where such information is not available, the company considers information from a variety of sources including -

1. Current prices in an active market of properties of different nature or recent prices of similar properties in less active market adjusted to reflect
those differences.

2. Discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates of future cash flows.

3. Capitalised income projections based upon a praperty’s estimated net market income, and a capitalisation rate derived from an analysis of market
evidence.

The main inputs used are the rental growth rates, expected vacancy rates, terminal yields and discount rates based on comparable transactions and
industry data. All the resulting fair vaiue estimates for investment properties are included in level 3.

These valuations are based on valuations performed by 8 V Kushte, an accredited independent valuer. Mr. Kushte is a specialist in valuing these
types of investment properties. A vaiuation model in accordance with that recommended by the international Valuation Standards Committee has bean
applied.

The Company has no restrictions on the realisability of its investment properties and no contractusl obligations to purchase, construct or develop
investment properties or for repairs, maintenarice and enhancements.

b. No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the Company under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988.at end of Financial year

c.The Title deeds of Properties are held in the name of the Company

Note: Refer Note 37 for information on investment properly piedged as security by the Company.
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§. Financial assets

5 (a). Investments As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Investments in unquoted equity instruments {fully paid-up)

Measured at cost

Investments in others

Forte Furniture Products India Private Limited

6,23,032 shares @ Rs 17 per Share (31 March 2021: 366,400 105.92 1,449.92
shares @ Rs 10 per Shares and 83,13,432 shares @ Rs 17 per

Share)

Soundarya IFPL Interiors Limited

1 Marc : 125, er share - 5
3 h 2021: 125,001) @ 10 per sh 12.50
105.92 1,462.42

Aggregate Cost of unquoted investments 105.92 1,462.42
Fair value of unquoted investments - -
Gain/(Loss) in fair value of assets

Investments carried at Amortised cost 105.92 1,462.42
Investments carried at FVTPL -
Invesimentis carried at FVTOCI

5(b). Loans Non current
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Loans
Inter corporate deposits
To others 1,125.00 1,125.00
1,125.00 1,125.00
Breakup of loans
Loans considered good- Unsecured 1,125.00 1,125.00
5{c). Other financial assets Non Current Current
As at As at As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Margin money deposits* - 373.68 373.68 -

Interest accrued but not due on deposits - 8.68 1.93 -

Security deposits 51.04 51.04 - -
51.04 433.40 375.61 -

*Margin money deposit with carrying amount of ¥ 373.68 lacs (31 March 2021 ¥ 373.68 lacs) are subject 1o first charge to secure the debt
service reserve account (DSRA).

5 (a). Investments As at As at
31 Mar2022 31 March 2021
Measured at fair value through Profit and Loss
account
Investment in Mutual Fund 3011
(Baroda Mutual Fund - 2701.694 Units @ Rs
1114.5075/Unit)

30.11 -
Aggregate Cost of quoted investments 30.00 -
Market vaiue of quoted investments 30.11 -
Gain/(Loss) in fair value of assets 0.1 -
Investments carried at FVTPL 30.11 -

Investments carried at FVTOCI -
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6. Other assets Non-current

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2024

Current

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

Deposits against disputed demands 185.38 162.24 - -
Balance with statutory authorities - - 2842 32.51
Advances to vendors - - 128.97 126.44
Prepaid expenses - - 0.15 0.34

185.38 162.24 167.54 169.29
7. Inventories As at As at

(Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)

Raw materials
Work-in-progress
Finished goods
Traded goods
Stores and spares
Packing materials

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

0.33 41.35
131.79 44142
164.42 276.48

19.78 44.51

0.64 1.44

316.96 8056.20

During the current financial year Inventory have further been written off to the extent of Rs 192.68 lacs, based on Net Realisable

Value. (Previous year ended 31 March 2021 write off is 230.66 lacs)

(This space is intentionaily left blank)
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8. Trade receivables As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Receivables from related parties 1,396.41 958.33
Receivables from other parties 117.60 208.19
1,614.01 116652

Break-up of security detafls:

Trade receivables considered good- Unsecured 1,514.01 1,166.52
Trade receivables - credit impaired 1,089.24 1,006.55
Total 2,603.25 2173.07
Loss allowance (1,089.24) {1,0086.55)
Net total 1.514.01 1,166.52

As at 31st March 2022

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment#
Particulars Less than 6 |6 months More than 3 Total
1-2 years 2-3 years
months - | 1 year years

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables considered good 272.59 219.43 | 621.11 322.05 78.82 1,514.01
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables considered doubtful 1,089.24 1,089.24
(iil) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables considered doubtful

As at 31st March 2021

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment#

Particulars Less than 6 |6 months 1-2 years 2.3 years More than 3 Total
months 1year |V i years
|(i) Undisputed Trade receivables considered good 345.93 407.41| 259.68 71.60 81.89 1,166.52
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables considered doubtful 1,006.55 1,006.55

(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good
iv) Disputed Trade Receivables considered doubtful
** There is no unbilled dues as on 31.03.2022 ( As on 31.03.2021- Nil)

8. Cash and cash equivalents As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
a. Balances with banks
- On current accounts 68.26 84.03
b. Cash on hand 1.09 091
69.35 84.94
10. Other bank balances As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Balances with banks:
Margin money deposits* 24.61 22.88
Fixed deposits 18.41 118.16
43.01 141.04

*Margin money deposit with carrying amount of £24.61 lacs (31 March 2021 222.88 lacs) are subject o first charge to secure the Company’s bank guarantee.

(This space has been intentionally ieft blank)
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11. Share capital

Authorised share capital Equity Shares of #10 each 7% Redeemable Convertible non-

cumulative Preference Shares of

100 each
Number of Amount Number of Amount
shares shares

As at 1 April 2020 7,26,00,000 7,260.00 11,30,220 1,130.22
Increase/(decrease) during the year - - - -
As at 31 March 2021 7,26,00,000 7,260.00 11,30,220 1,130.22
Increase/(decrease) during the year - - - -
As at 31 March 2022 7,26,00,000 7,260.00 11,30,220 1,130.22
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up: As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

70,099,470 (31st March 2021: 70,099,470) equity shares of 10/- each fully paid 7,000.95 7,009.95

7,009.95 7,009.95

a) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Number of Amount Number of Amount
shares shares
At the beginning of the year 7,00,99,470 7,009.95 7,00,99.470 7,009.95
Issued during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 7,00,99,470 7,009.85 7,00,99,470 7,009.85

b. Terms/rights attached to equlty shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.The Company
declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject io the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing
Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitied to receive remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

¢. Terms of conversion/ redemption of redeemable convertible non-cumulative preference shares

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company issued 1,000,000 redesmable convertible non-cumulative preference shares of 100 each fully paid-up per
share. Redeemable convertible non-cumulative preference shares carry cumulative dividend @ 7% p.a. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian
rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Each holder of
redeemable convertible non-cumulative preference shares is entitled to one vote per share only on resolutions placed before the Company which directly affect the
rights attached to redesmable convertible non-cumuiative preference shares,

If redeemable convertible non-cumulative preference share holders do net exercise conversion option, all preference shares are redeemable at par at the end of
12th year from the date of issue. In the event of liquidation of the Company before conversion/ redemption of redeemable converlible non-cumulative preference
shares, the holders of redeemable convertible non-cumulative preference shares will have priority over equity shares in the payment of dividend and repayment of
capital.

d. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of equity shares in the Company

Name of Shareholder As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Number of % Holding Number of % Holding
shares shares

Equity shares of #10 each fully paid up

Zuari Global Limited 5,07,85,714 72.45% 6,07,85,714 72.45%
Zuari Investment Limited 70,44,643 10.05% 70,44,643 10.05%
Adventz Investment Company Private Limited 70,71,429 10.09% 70,71,429 10.09%
Others 51,97,684 741% 51,97,684 7.41%

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members
the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

e. Details of Share held by Promoters at the end of the year

and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest,

Name of the Promoters

As at 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2021

Number of % % of Change Number of % Holding % of Change
shares Holding during the shares during the year
year
Zuari Global Limited ** 5,07,85714 | 72.45% - 5,07,85,714 72.45% -
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12. Other equity As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Securities premlum 53.33 53.33
Equity component of convertible preference shares of #100 each 771.69 771.69
{issued and fully pald)
{Deficit) in the statement of profit and loss:
Balance as per tast financial statements (5,300.59) (4,257.97)
Net Profit/(loss )for the year (721.43) (1,042.62)
Retained eamnings (6,022.02) 15,300.59)

5,197.00) (4,476.57)

Description of nature and purpose of each reserve

Securities premium

Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The secutities premium will be utilised in accordance with provisions of The Act

Equity component of convertible preference shares of 100 each ({Issued and fully
This reserve contains equity portien of compound instrument issued by the Company in the form of convertible preference shares

Retained earnings
Retained earnings are created from the profit / (loss) of the Company

13. Borrowings- Non-current Non-curmrent Current maturities
As at As at As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

{Measured at amortised cost)

From others
Secured borrowings
Term loans from Non-Banking Financial Corporations [refer note (i)] 2,985.04 800.00 800.00 1,066.67
Unsecured borrowings
Inter Corporate Deposits [refer note (if)] 5884.35 7,262,668 - =
8,869.39 8,062.68 800.00 1,066.67
Liabitity p of d fii ial instrument
Redeemable Preference Shares (unsecured) [refer note (i)} 486.38 430.05 _ -
Sub-total 486.38 430.05 - -
Less : Current maturities of long tem borrowings disclosed in Other - {800.00) (1,066.67)

financial liabilities (Refer Note 16)

9,356.77 8.492.73 - =

i} Secured borrowings
Terms and conditions of borrowings obtained from Non-Banking Financial Corporations are as follows:

1) The term loan facility of 24,000 lacs (31 March 2021 - 34,000 lacs) taken from M/s Bajaj Finance Limited (BFL) carries an annual interest at floating
rate of 10.50% p.a. linked to BFL base rate. It is repayable in 15 equal quarterly instalment of 2266.67 lacs payable from 5 May 2019 with an initial
moratorium of 16 months. The term Ioan is secured by way of ;-

1. Collateral - First pari passu charge on immovable fixed assets owned by the Company.

2. Collateral - First pari passu charge by way of hypothecation over all present and future movable fixed and current assets of the Company.

3. Escrow of annual lease rental receivables of the borrower from FFPL.

4. Entire management fees received from Soundarya IFPL interiors Limited in the form and manner as acceptable to BFL.

S. DSRA equals to 3 months interest and 1 quater principal required to maintain by the Company.

6. Irrevocable and unconditional corporate gurantee of Zuari Global Limited {i.e. the holding company)

The outstanding book baiance as on 31st Mar 2022 is ¥ 800 lacs (31 March 2021 - 31,600 lacs).

2) The term foan facility of ¥ 5000 lacs (31 March 2021 Ni) taken from M/s Bajaj Finance Limited (BFL) camies an annual interest at floating rate of
8.75% p.a. linked to BFL base rate. It is repayable at the end of Tenure i.e 36 months. The term loan is secured by way of :-

1. Pledge of Equity Shares of Chambal Fertilizers & Chemicals Ltd

2. Security Provided by Zuari Global Limited

3. The Company has received initial disbursement of Rs 3000 lacs during the year

The outstanding book balance as on 31st Mar 2022 is ¥ 2985.04 lacs (31 March 2021 - Nil).

1i) Unsecured borrowings

1} The Company has taken inter Corporate Deposit (ICD) from Simon india Limited carrying an interest rate of 15.25%. During the year the loan was
repaid .The outstanding book balance as on 31st Mar 2022 is ¥ Nil (31 March 2021 - ¥3197.94 lacs).

2) The Company has taken Inter Corporate Deposit (ICD) from Zuari Global Limited carrying an interest rate of 15.00%. The outstanding book balance as
on 31st Mar 2022 is ¥2324.35 lacs (31 March 2021 - 24064.74).

3) The Company has taken inter Corporate Deposit (ICD) from Zuari Investment Limited carrying an interest rate of 11.50%. The outstanding book
balance as on 31st Mar 2022 is 3560 lacs(31st March 2021 ~Nil)

iii) Terms of ion/ of red: ble convertible non-cumulative preference shares

During the year ended March 31, 2016, the Company issued 1,000,000 Redeemable convertible non<cumulative preference shares of Rs. 100 each fuily
paid-up per share. Redeemable convertible non-cumulative preference shares carry cumulative dividend @ 7% p.a. The Company declares and pays
dividends in [ndian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the sharehoiders in the ensuing Annual General
Meeting. Each holder of redeemable convertible non-cumulative preference shares is entitied to one vote per share only on resolutions placed before the
company which directly affect the rights attached to redeemable convertible non-cumulative preference shares.

if redeemable convertible non-cumulative preference share holders do not exercise conversion option, all preference shares are redeemable at par at the
end of 12th year from the date of issue. In the event of liquidation of the company before conversion/ redemption of redeemable convertible non-
cumulative preference shares, the holders of redeemable convertible non-cumulative preference shares will have priority over equity shares in the
payment of dividend and repayment of capital.
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13.1 Changes in Habilities arising from fi ing activitles to ind AS 7 - Cash flows:
Particular Non-current Current

bomrowings borrowings

{including

current
turities)
A) Non-current borrowings (including current maturities)
’

As at 31 March 2020 B8,310.11 1,327.47
Cash adfustment

- Proceeds received 3,201.00 -

- Repayments# (2,863.74) (100.00)
Non-cash adjustment
- Interest recorded on preference shares 48.75 -

- Amortisation of transaction cost 34.81 -

- ICD converted from Current to Non Current Borrowings . 827.47 (827.47)
As at 31 March 2021 9,659.39 400.00
As at 31 March 2021 9,559.39 400.00
Cash adjustment

- Proceeds received 12,088.26
- Repayments# {11,513.26) -
Non-cash adjustment
- Interest recorded on preference shares 56.33 -

- Amortisation of transaction cost 0.04 -

- Unamortisation of transaction cost {15.00)

- ICD converted from Current to Non Current Borrowings .

As at 31 March 2022 10,185.77 400.00

# In case of current borrowings, represents proceeds received/(repayments) of short-term borrowings (net)

B) Finance cost activity Finance cost
Activity

As at 31 March 2020 474.74
Finance cost incurred during the pericd 1327.63
Finance cost paid ) (795.38)
As at 31 March 2021 _ 1,006.99
As at 31 March 2021 1,006.99
Finance cost incurred during the period 1,295.85
Finance cost paid 2,111.53)

As at 31 Mar 2022 191.31
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14, Borrowings - current As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
{Measured at amortised cost)

From others
Unsecured loans
Inter corporate deposits {refer note ()] 400.00 400.00
‘Current maturities of long term borrowings (refer note 13) 800.00 1.0686.67

1,200.00 1,466.67

i) Inter-company deposits taken from others:

1) The Company has taken Inter Corporate Deposit (/CD) from M/s/ Duke Commerce Limited. The outstanding book balance as on 31 Mar 2022 is 400
lacs (31 March 2021- 400 lacs).

15. Trade payables As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(Measured at amortised cost)

A. Total outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small
Enterprises

Disclosure under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 ("MSMED Act'):

i) the principal amount remaning unpaid to any supplier as at the end
of each accounting year.

if} the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16, - -
along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond
the appointed day during each accouting year

iii) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day
during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the
MSMED Act, 2006,

fv) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of
each accounting year; and

v) the amount of further interest remaining due and payabie even in .
the succeeeding year, untit such date when the interest dues as above

are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of

disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the

MSMED Act, 20086,

The above information regarding dues to micro, small and medium enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act (MSMED), 2006 has been determined to the extent identified and information available with the Company pursuant to section 22 of the Micro, Small
and Medium Enterprises Development Act (MSMED), 2008.

B. Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro Enterprises and Smait Enterprises

Trade payables 786.25 1,289.52
785,25 1,280.52

As at 31st Mar 2022

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payments
Particufars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Wore than 3 Total
years
{l) MSME - - - - R
(ii} Others N 57.08 89.24 43.58 595.35 785.25
(i) Disputed dues - MSME | - - -
(iv) Disouted dues - Others | - B .
As at 31st Mar 2021
[ [ ing for ing periods from due date of payment# |
Fartculars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 2 Total ]
— e e T years |
(il MSME B _ -
(i) Others = 149.38/ 64.95 71.93 1003.26 1289.52
(iii] Disputed dues ~ MSME - - - -
|(iv) Disputed dues - Others i - - B | -

** There is no unbilled dues as on 31.03.2022 (As on 31.03.2021- Nil)

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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16. Other financial liabilities

{Measured at amortised cost)

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings

Employee related payables
Security deposits

17. Other current liabilities

Payable to statutory authorities
Advances received from customers and others

18. Provisions {current and non-current)

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2022

y information for the period ended 31st Mar 2022

As at
31 March 2021

191.31 1,006.99
11.40 187.65
85.90 90.90
288.61 1,285.54

As at As at

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

106.45 86.80
528.86 605.28
635.31 692.08
Current
As at As at As at

31 March 2021 31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Provision for gratuity 1.70 1.33 0.15 0.37
Provision for leave encashment 0.66 0.39 0.10 0.28
Provision for sick leave - 5.89 - -
Others provisions:
Provision for warranty {refer note a] - 1.3 6.3¢
Provision for litigations [refer note b] 145.87 145.87 - -
148.23 153.47 1.56 7.04
{a) The movement for provisions for warranty is as foliows :- As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Opening balance 6.39 6.05
Additions during the year 0.19 0.34
Reversals during the year 5.26) -
Closing balance 1.3 6.39

The Company pravides warranty for products, undertaking to repair or replace the items that fail to perform satisfactorily during the
warranty period. Provision is based on historical experience. The estimate of such warranty related costs is revised annuaily.
Warranty provisions are made for expected future cash outflows which are expecled to occur over the period of warranty and
computed on total sales made during the year based on past experience.

{b) The mr 1t for provisi for litigati is as foll - As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Opening balance 14587 145.87
Additions during the year -

Reversals during the year -

Closing balance 14587 145.87

Provisions for litigations relate to the estimated outflow in respect of possible liabilities expected to arise in future in connection with
ongoing litigations relating to indirect taxes. Due to nature of such litigations, it is not possible to estimate the timing/uncertainties
relating to further outflows as well as expense relating to such estimates.

19 (a). Tax expense As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Deferred tax:

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 14.23) (3.17)
Total deferred tax benefit 14.23) (3.17)
As at As at

19 (b). 1 ¢ for th
{b). Income tax expense for the year 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

(Loss) before tax (725.40) {1.042.41)
Applicable tax rate (refer note) 26.00% 26.00%
Expected tax expense (188.60) (271.03)
Non recognition of deferred taxes due to inadequate future profits 188.60 271.03
Difference between carrying amount and tax base of land (presented under investment = (4.23) (3.17)
Income tax expense recognised in statement of profit and toss (4.23) (3.17)
Note

The income tax rates for domestic companies whose turnover has not exceeded INR 400 crores in the year ended 31 March 2018,
the applicable rate of income tax shall be 25% plus applicable cesses.
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Deferred tax :
Particulars As at Charged/(Credited) to As at Charged/{Credited) to As at

31 March 2020 Profit and Loss 31 March 2021 Profit and Loss 21 Mar 2022
Deferred tax liabllity (A):
Difference between carrying amount and tax base of 2,304.69 (3.17) 2,301.52 (4.23) 2,297.29
land
(presented under investment property)
Deferred tax asset (B) (refer note b): - . . - -
Deferred tax liability (A - B) 2,304.69 (3.47) 2,301,562 (4.23) 2,297.29

Notes:

a). The Company offsets 1ax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

b). The Company has not recognized deferred tax asset on deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses in absence of reasonable certainty and availability
of sufficient future taxable profits against which such differences and losses will be adjusted.

The amounts of deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses on which no deferred tax assets are recognised amounted to:

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Gross amount Unrecognized tax effect Gross amount Unrecognized tax effect
Deductible temporary differences (net) 1,173.94 305.22 1,239.53 322.28
Unabsorbed depreciation 1,984.81 516.05 2,088.26 542.95
Unused tax losses 7,176.086 1,865.77 7,284.25 1,893.91

Unabsorbed depreciation presesnted above does not have expiry time per enacted tax laws in the country.

The unused tax losses for which no deferred tax assets are recognised representing business losses (excluding unabsorbed depreciation) are as follows:

Year of expiry As at As at
Financial year ending 31 March 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
2022-23 1,017.88 1,017.88
2023-24 738.28 738.28
2024-25 1,447.39 1,447.39
2025-26 158.64 158.64
2026-27 1,727.86 1,727.86
2027-28 823.06 823.06
2028-29 B80B.62 806.62
2029-30 456.34

7,176.06 6,719.72

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




Indian Furniture Products Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the period ended 31st Mar 2022
(All amounts in ¥ lacs, unless stated otherwise)

20. Revenue from operations For the year For the year
ended ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Sale of products 165.24 262.48
165.24 262.48
20.a.The following table provides information about receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities from contracts with customers
For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Recelvables
Trade Receivables 1,514.01 1,166.52
1,514.01 1,166.52
Contract Assets - -
Contract Liabilities (Advance received from Customers)
Opening Balance 605.29 605.29
Advance received during the year -
Revenue recognized that was included in the contract liability balance at the beginning of the year _ 76.44) =
Closing Balance 528.86 605.29
21. Other income For the year For the year
ended ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Other non-operating Income
interest income:;
On bank deposits 32.28 42.11
Others 19.77 105.96
Unclaimed balances, provisions and liabilities written back 601.24 484
Rental income 494.25 49425
Exchange differences (net) 0.94 3.63
Profit on sale of investments 57.26 -
1,205.74 650.79
22. Cost of raw materials and components consumed For the year For the year
ended ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Raw materials and components consumed#
Inventory at the beginning of the year 41.35 45.94
Add : Purchases - -
Less: Inventory at the end of the year 0.33 41.35
41.02 4.59
22.1 Purchase of traded goods For the year For the year
ended ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Purchase of traded goods 0.84 107.67
- 0.84 107.67

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the period ended 31st Mar 2022
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23. Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and traded goods

Inventories at the end of the year
Work-in-progress
Traded goods
Finished goods

Inventories at the beginning of the year
Work-in-progress
Traded goods
Finished goods

Changes in inventories

24. Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus
Contribution to provident and other funds
Staff welifare

25. Finance costs

Interest expense
- To banks
- To others
Other borrowing costs

26. Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation of tangible assets [(Note 3(a)]
Amortisation of intangible assets [(Note 3b)]
Depreciation of investment property (Note 4)

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

For the year ended
31 March 2022

164.42

For the year
ended
31 March 2021

276.48

131.79 441.42
296,21 717.90
276.48 386.54
441.42 542.33
717.90 928.87
421.69 210.97

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year
ended
31 March 2021

2415 24.10
2.34 1.10
0.08 0.08
26.58 25.28
For the year ended For the year

31 March 2022

ended
31 March 2021

1,239.47 1,242.41
1 ,239?47 1 ,242-.41
56.38 85.21
1.295.85 1,327.63
For the year ended For the year

31 March 2022

ended
31 March 2021

93.55 99.10
25.13 2513
118.68  124.24
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Indian Furniture Products Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the period ended 31st Mar 2022

(All amounts in ¥ lacs, unless stated otherwise)

27. Other expense For the year For the year
ended ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Management fees 17.25 78.14
Consumption of stores and spares 24.73 4.94
Consumption of packing materials 0.80 0.16
Repairs and maintenance:

Buildings - -

Plant and machinery - -

Others 048 0.04
Outward freight and forwarding charges 0.08 0.24
Rent - 6.69
Provision for doubtful receivables 82.69 -
Rates and taxes 23.70 17.77
Insurance 1.17 2.15
Travelling and conveyance 1.98 1.89
Legal and professional fees 3507 38.05
Payment to auditors* 3.00 3.00
Communication costs 0.17 0.17
Adventising and sales promotion - 1.51
Provision for warranties 0.19 0.34
Balances written off - 0.18
Loss on sale of Fixed Assets 0.24 -
Miscellaneous expenses 0.19 0.04

191.72 155.30
*Payment to auditors For the year For the year
ended ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
As auditor:
Audit fees 3.00 3.00
In other capacity
Reimbursement of expenses - -

Total 3.00 3.00

28. Earnings/(loss) per share (EPS)

Basic and diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the

weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:
For the year
ended
31 March 2022

Loss before tax {721.17)
Weighted average number of equity shares used for computing EPS (basic & diluted) 7,00,99,470
Loss per share (basic and diluted) () (1.03)
Face value per share (%) 10

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

For the year
ended
31 March 2021

(1,042.70)
7,00,99,470

(1.49)

10
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Summary of significant accounting policles and other explanatory information for the period ended 31st Mar 2022

(All amounts in ¥ lacs, unless stated otherwise)

29, Contingent liabilities

Particulars

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

Tax demands in excess of provisions:

Value added tax {net of provision 2145.87 lacs (31 March 2021: ¥145.87 lacs)} 379.98 323.35
Service tax and excise duty 9.64 0.64
Labour disputes 31.15 31.156
Total 420.77 364.15

30. Lease commitments

(A) Operating leases - lessee

Certain office premises are held on operating lease. The lease term is ranging upto 3 years and are further renewable by mutual consent on mutually
agreed terms. There is no escalation clause in the lease agreements. There are no restrictions imposed by lease agreements. There are no subleases.

The leases are canceliable.

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Lease payments made for the year - 6.69
- 6.69

Note:
The Company does not have any financial leases.

(B) Operating leases - lessor

The Company has leased out its land and factory building along with plant and machinery under the operiaing lease. The lease term is range from 1-5
years are further renewabie by mutual consent on mutually agreed terms. There is no escalation clause in the lease agreements. There are no restrictions
imposed by lease agreements. There are no subleases. The leases are non-cancellable,

Rental income recognised during the year amounts to 494.25 lacs (31 March 2021: 3494.25 lacs).

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Receivable within 1 year 494,25 494.25

Receivable between 1-5 years 1,977.01 -
Receivable after 5 vears - -
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31. Related party transactions and disclosures

y information for the period ended 31st Mar 2022

a) The list of related parties as identified by the management are as under

Holding company

[Zuari Global Limited (ZGL)

Related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year:

Companies under common control

2Zuari Fertilisers and Chemicals Limited (ZFL)

Zuari Infra Middle East Limited (ZIMEL)

Zuari Infraworid India Limited (ZHL)

2Zuari Infraworld SIM Properties LLC (2iSJMP)

Forte Fumiture Products India Private Limited (FFPL)

Fellow subsidiaries

Simon India Limited (SIL)

Zuari Investments Limited (ZIL)

Gobind Sugar Mills Limited (GSML)

Zuari Management Services Limited (ZMSL)
Zuari Finserv Limited (ZFL)

Associates of holding company

Zuari Agro Chemicals Limited (ZAGL)

Paradeep Phosphates Limited (PPL)

Zuari Farmhub Limited (ZFHL)

Texmaco Rail & Engineers Lid(TREL)
Mangalore Chemicals and Fertilisers Ltd (MCFL)

Joint Ventures

Soundarya IFPL Interiors Limited (SIFL)

Key Management Personnel:

Mr, Bhaskar Chatterjee, Director

Mr. L M Chandrashekar, Director

Mr Nishant Datal, Director

Mr.Alok Banerjes, Director(from 27/01/2022)
Mr Sandeep Kumar, Chief Financial Officer
Mr Suchit Rawal(Company Secretary)

Mr N Krishnan, Manager

Mr. Soundaraghavan Rangachari, Director (Till 27/01/2022)

b) The following transactions were carried out with related parties in the ordinary course of business:-

$.No|Description Holding pany A late of hold Company under Key Management
— company 1 control Personnel
31-Mar-22 | 31-Mar-21 | 31-Mar-22 | 31-Mar-21 | 31-Mar-22 | 31-Mar-21 | 34 -Mar-22 | 31-Mar-21
1 |ZGL
- Sale of goods - 29.44 - - - -
- interest Expense 717.48 398.44
- Intercorporate deposits received 5,508.26 3,201.00 - - - -
- Intercorperate deposits repaid 7,248.65 363.74 - - - -
- Sale of Investment 1,369.66
2 |ZFHL - - 88.35 . - - -
3 |FFPL
- Sale of goods - - - - 29.91 12.88 - -
Purchase of goods - - - - 0.84 0.06 - -
Management fees - - - - 17.25 58.14 - -
Interest on intercorporate deposits - - - - 89.49 . -
- Lease rental - - - - 494.25 494.25 - -
- Expenses - - - - 26.64 45.39 - -
- Investment in Equity shares - - - - - 1,413.28 - -
4 |ZACL
- Sale of goods - - - 162.54 - - -
5 |z
- Reimbursement paid - - - 99.30 - -
6 |ZIL
- Intercorporate deposits received 3,560.00 -
- Interest Expense 267.49 - -
7 |SIL
- Sale of goods - = 2533 -
- Interest Expense 102.88 487.69
- Expenses - reimbursement paid - - - - 0.04 - -
- Intercorporate deposits repaid - - - - 3,197.94 - - -
8 |ZMSL
- Interest Expense - - - - - 7.34 - -
- Intercorporate deposits received - - - - - 80.00 - -
- Intercorporate denosits repaid - - - - - 180.00 - -
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Indian Furniture Products Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31st Mar 2022
Al amounts in ¥ lacs, unless stated otherwise)

5.No|Description Holding pany A iate of holding Company under Key Management
company common control Personnel
31-Mar-22 | 31-Mar-21 | 31-Mar-22 | 31-Mar-21 | 31-Mar-22 | 31-Mar-21 | 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
9 |GSML - - - -
10 |TREL - - 7.38 -
11 |ZiIsJmp
- Advance given - - - - - . -
- Expenses Reimbursement paid 297
12 |ZFL
- Expenses Reimbursement paid 0.12 0.64 - -
13 |Remuneration Pald
Mr Sandeep Kumar - - - - 10.12 8.65
Mr N Krishnan - - . - - - 9.50 6.25

c) Balance at the end of period 31.03.2022

S.No|Description Holding pany A i of holding Company under Key Management
company common control Personnel
31-Mar-22 | 31-Mar-21 | 31-Mar-22 | 31-Mar-21 | 31-Mar-22 | 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-22 | 31-Mar-21
1 |1ZGL* (2,324.36)| (4,394.51) - - - -
2 |ZFHL - {182.82) - - - -
3 |FFPL - - - - 1,043.00 586.90 - -
4 |ZACL - - (287.07) - - -
5 |zIL - - - | (3,560.00) - - -
6 |SIL - - - - - {3,600.96) - -
7 |ZISIMP - - - B 27.05 26.08 - -
8 |TREL - - 7.38 7.38 - - -
9 |ZFL {0.24) {0.64)
10 |Mr Sandeep Kumar (0.65) {0.21)
11 _|Mr N Krishnan | - - - - 10.85) (0.73)

*The hoiding company has provided irrevocable and unconditional corporate guarantee in favour of the Company lenders.
* The Company has received financial support from its holding company i.e. Zuari Global Limited, that the holding company will provide financial support to the
Company whenever required to fulfil all its obligations for ensuring continuity of its operations.

(This space has been intentionally feft blank)
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the period ended 31st Mar 2022

(All amounts in ¥ lacs, unless stated otherwise)

32 Employee benefits
Employee benefit obligations

31 Mar 2022 31 March 2021
Current Non-current Total Current Non-current Total
Contribution to provident fund 2.34 - 2.34 1.10 - 1.10
Gratuity 0.15 1.70 1.85 0.36 1.33 1.69
Compensated absences 0.10 0.66 0.76 0.28 0.39 0.67
Total employee benefit obligations 2.59 2.36 4.95 1.73 1,72 3.45

{a) Balance sheet amounts - Gratuity

The amount recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation over the year are as follows:

Particulars 31 Mar 2022 31 March 2021
Opening Defined Obligation 1.69 1.32
Current service cost 0.29 0.35
Past service cost - -
Interest expense/(income) 0.1 0.09
Liabilities written back in respect of employees transferred to group company - -
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 0.40 0.44
Remeasurements

(Gain)/Loss from change in demographic assumptions - -

(Gain)/Loss from change in financial assumptions {0.31) 0.01

Experience (Gains/loss) 0.05 (0.08)
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income _ (0.26) i (0.08)
Benefit payments -
Closing Defined Obligation 1.84 1.69
The net liability disclosed above relates to unfunded plans are as follows:
Particulars T As at As at

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Present value of funded obligations 1.84 1.69
Unfunded Provision 1.84 1.69
{b) Assumptions:
1. Economic assumptions
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Discount rate 7.22% 6.80%
Salary growth rate 5.00% 8% for 1st

2 years & 6.5%

thereafter

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian government securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations.

The salary escalation rate is based on estimates of salary increases, which takes into account infiation, prometion and other relevant factors.

2. Demographic assumptions:

Particulars

Retirement age

Withdrawal rate, based on age
Upto 30 years
From 31 to 44 years
Above 44 years

Mortality rate

As at
31 March 2022
60
3%
2%

1%
100% of IALM

As at
31 March 2021
60
3%
2%
1%

100% of IALM
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the period ended 31st Mar 2022
(All amounts in ¥ facs, unless stated otherwise)

{c) Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affecled the
defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below.

Impact on defined benefit obligation

Particulars Change in assumption Increase in assumption Decrease in assumption

As at As at As at As at As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Discount rate -1 +0.5% -1+0.5% (0.06) (0.06) 0.07 0.06
Salary growth rate -1+0.5% -1+0.5% 0.07 0.06 (0.06) (0.06)

Sensitivities due to mortality & withdrawals are not material & hence impact of change due to these not calculated.

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the
assumptions shown.

(d] Risk exposure

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Weighted average duration (based on discounted cashflows) 14.86 years 16.50 years

(e) Risk exposure
Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:

Salary escalation risk: Actual salary increases will increase the Plan's liability. Increase in salary increase rate assumption in future valuations will also increase
the liability.

Investment risk: If Plan is funded then assets liabilities mismatch & actual investment return on assets lower than the discount rate assumed at the last
valuation date can impact the liability.

Discount rate risk: Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liability.

Mortality & disability risk: Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilities.

Detailed information o the extent pravided by the actuary in the actuarial certificate has been included in the disclosure given above.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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33. Fair value measurements
Financial instruments by category

31 Mar 2022 31 March 2021
FVPL FVOCI Amortised FVPL FVOCI Amortised
cost cost

Financial assets
Investment in unquoted equity shares - 1056.92 - - 1,449.92 -
Investment in Mutual Fund 30.11 - - - -
Loans

- Inter corporate deposits - - 1,125.00 - - 1,125.00

- Security deposits - - 51.04 - - 51.04
Trade receivables - - 1,514.01 - - 1,166.52
Cash and cash equivalents - - 69.35 - - 84.94
Margin money deposits - - 24.61 - - 2288
Fixed deposits - - 18.41 - - 118.16
Other receivables - - 426.65 - - 433.40
Total 30.11 105.92 3,229.07 - 1,449.92 3,001.95
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - - 10,555.77 8,959.40
Trade payables - - 785.25 1,289.52
Employee related payables - - 11.40 187.65
Other payables - - 277.21 - - 1,097.89
Total - - 11,629.63 - - 12,534.45

(i} The management assessed that carrying vaiue of financial assets and financial liabilties, carried at amortised cost, are approximately equal to their fair values at

respective balance sheet dates and do not significantly vary from the respective amounts in the balance sheets.

(i) Investment in joint ventures are measured at cost as per Ind AS 27, ‘Separate financial statements’ and hence, not presented here.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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34. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, security deposits, employee liabilities. The main pumpose of
these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations and io provide guarantess to support its operations. The Company's principal financial assets include
loans, frade and other receivables, cash and short-term deposits that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to interest risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these risks. The Company's
senior management is supported by a Finance team that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. The
finance team provides assurance to the Company’s senior management that the Company's financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and
procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives. It is the Company’s policy
that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes may be undertaken. The Board of Direclors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which
are summarised below.

Interest rate risk
Applicability - Financial liabilities
The company has various term loans (short term and long term) from financial institutions, inter corporate deposits,

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's
exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

The Company has taken floaling rate borrowing, hence the interest rate risk is to be considered. The Company has used movement in bank rates by Reserve Bank of
india for making a sensilivity analysis for interest rate risk.

Increase Effect on profit
Idecrease in or loss before

basis points tax ( Rs.)

31 March 2022

INR +50 (19.00)
INR -50 19.00
31 March 2021

INR +50 (21.66)
INR -50 21.66

The assumed movement in basis points for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently observable market environment, showing a significantly
higher volatility than in prior years.

Foreign currency risk
Applicability

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s
exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a
foreign currency).

The company management constantly keeps a track of the foreign currency movement and takes advise from the corporate treasury for hedging the foreign exchange
rates. As the volume of transaclions and outstanding position at a given point of time is very low and the risk due 1o foreign exchange fluctuation would not be
material, the management decided not to hedge the foreign currency exposure.

Foreign currency sensitivity

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in AED exchange rates, with all other variables held constant, the impact on the
Company’s profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary liabilities including non-designated foreign currency derivatives and embedded derivatives.

Receivables Payables
Change in AED Effect on profit Effect on pre- Change in AED Effect on profit Effecton pre-tax
rate or loss before tax equity rate or loss before equity
31 March 2022 +5% 3.02 - +5% (1.72) -
-5% (3.02) - -5% 1.72 -
31 March 2021 +5% 3.15 +5% (1.71) -

5% (3.15) . 5% 171 -
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Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is
exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions,
foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

Applicability
Trade receivables
inter Corporate Deposits
Deposits with Banks
Security deposits given
Loans to employees

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by monitoring individual category customers subject to the Company's established policy, procedures and control relating to
customer credit risk management. Ouistanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. Based on the ageing of receivables, the Company assesses the
recoverabilty of the amount from each customer

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for all clients. The calculation is based on exchange losses historical data. The
Company does not hold collaleral as security. The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to rade receivables as low, as its customers are located
in several jurisdictions and industries and operate in largely independent markets.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables as of the reporting date is as follows:

Particulars Either past due |Neither past Past due but not impaired Total
o impaired due nor Less than 1 More than 1
impaired vear vear
Trade Receivables as of 31 March 2022 1,213.39 492.02 897.84 2,603.25
Trade Receivables as of 31 March 2021 1,197.56 44.81 660.99 269.71 2,173.07

Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company's finance department in accordance with the Company's policy.
Investments of surplus funds are made in fixed deposits with banks only. Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Company’s Board of Directors on an annual
basis. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s potential failure to make payments.

Liquidity risk

The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds using a liquidity planning tool.

The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds using future cash flow projections. The Company manages its liquidity needs by continuously monitoring cash
flows from customers and by maintaining adequate cash and cash equivalents. The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and

flexibility through shareholder funds or borrowings from the holding company or sister concems. Considering the stability of the company's holding company, liquidity
risk of the Company is considered to be low.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

Particulars On demand Less than 3 3to12 1 to 5 years > 5 years Total
months months

Year ended

31 March 2022

Borrowings - 266.67 933.33 8,884.35 - 10,084.35

Trade payables 785.25 - - 785.25

Other financial liabilities 288.61 - - - - 288.61
1,073.86 266.67 933.33 B,884.35 - 11,158.21

Year ended

31 March 2021

Borrowings - 266.67 800.00 8,462.68 - 9,529.34

Trade payables 1,289.52 - - - 1,289.52

Other financial liabilities 1,285.54 - - - - 1,285.54
2,575.06 266.67 800.00 8,462.68 - 12,104.40

The Company has access to following financing facilities which were undrawn as at the end of reporting periods mentioned:

Undrawn financing facility 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Secured working capital facilities

Amount used h -
Amount unused - -
Total N - S

Unsecured working capital facilities

Amount used 6,284 .35 4,925.41
Amount unused - -
Total 6,284.35 4,925.41
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the period ended 31st Mar 2022
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35. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Effects of offsetting on the balance sheet Related amounts not offset
Gross amounts  Netamounts Amounts subject  Financial
Gross amounts setoffinthe presented In the to master netting instrument Net amount
balance sheet  balance sheet  arrangements collateral

31 March 2022
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 10,155.77 - 10,155.77 - 3,178.02 6,977.75
Trade receivable 1,514.01
31 March 2021
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 9,659.40 - 9,559.40 - 2,950.90 6,608.50
Trade receivable 1,166.52

36. Disclosure required under Section 186 {4) of the Companies Act, 2013

Particulars of interest bearing inler-company deposits aiven:

Name of the party Opening balance Additions Repayments Outstanding Purpose
balance

Straight Curve Ideas Private

Limited 1,125.00 - - 1,125.00 |General Business Purpose

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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37 Assets pledged as security
The carrying amounts of asset pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings are:

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Current
Financial assets

i) Trade receivables 1,614.01 1,166.52

ii) Cash and cash equivalent 69.35 84.94

iii) Other bank balances 43.01 141.04

iv) Other financial assets 375.61 -
Non-financial assets

i} Inventories 316.96 805.20
Total current assets pledged as security 2,318.94 __2,197.70

Non-current
Financial assets

i) Loans 1,125.00 1,125.00

ii} Other financial assets 51.04 433.40
Non-financial assets

i) Property, plant and equipment 483.22 577.82

ii) Investment property 11,948.06 11,973.20

iii} Intangible assets - .

Total non-current assets pledged as security 13,607.32 14109.42

Total assets pledged as security 15,926.26 16,307.12

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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38 Capital management

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity
holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Company's objectives for managing capital comprise safeguarding the business as a going concem, creating value for stakeholders and supporting the
development of the Company. in particular, the Company seeks to maintain an adequate capitalization that enables it to achieve a satisfactory return for shareholders
and ensure access fo external sources of financing, in part by maintaining an adequate rating. In this context, the Company manages its capital structure and adjusts
that structure when changes in economic conditions so require.

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the
interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants wouid permit the bank to immediately calt
loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and barrowing in the current pericd.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021
The management constantly monitors and reviews the debt to equity ratio. As part of this review, the management considers the cost of capital and risks associated
with each class of capital requirements and maintenance of adequate liquidity buffer.

The position on reporting date is summarized in the following table:

As at As at
Particul

ariculars 31 March2022 31 March 2021
Long term borrowings (inciuding financial liability part of non cumulative redeemable 9,355.77 8,492.73
preference shares)

Current maturities of long-term borrowings 800.00 1,066.67
Short-term borrowings 1,200.00 1,466.67
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (69.35) {B4.94)
Total Debt (a) 11,286.42 10,941.12
Total Equity (b) 1,812.958 2,534.38
Capital gearing ratio (aib} 6.23 4.32

39 Operating Segments
In the opinion of the management, there is only cne reporting segment "Manufaciuring and sale of Fumiture” as envisaged by Ind As 108 "Operating Segments". The
Company is operating only in India and there is no other significant geographical segment.

40 The Company had placed on 1 January 2008, inter corporate deposit (ICD) amounting to 21,000 lakhs to Straight Curve ideas Private Limited (“SCIPL") for a period of
3 months. The deposit camied interest rate of 15% p.a. and out of the total interest acerued from the inception of the ICD to 31 March 2010 of ¥183.28 lakhs SCIPL has
made payment (including Tax Deducted at Sources) aggregating to 58.28 lacs. On account of continuing default by SCIPL in respect of principal and interest, the
Company has suspended accruing for further interest with effect from 1 April 2010. Further the Company has initiated legal proceedings for the recovery of the
outstanding amount. The Company is of the view that since personnel guarantee has been provided by one of the director of the SCIPL and pledge of shares of SCIPL
obtained as security, the amount oulstanding is fully recoverable and no provision has been made in the financial statements in this regard. The management believes
that the ultimate outcome of this proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position and resuits of operations.

4

=

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company has incurred a book loss of T 721.43 (previous year: 21042.62) lacs besides also incurring a cash loss as on 31
Mareh 2022, the accumulated losses of the Company amounted to ¥ 6022.02 lacs (previous year: T 5300.59 lacs). These conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concem. The management of the Company is confident to generate
sufficient profits and cash from operations in near future. Further, Zuar Global Limited (the holding company) has confinmed its intent as weil as ability to extend
continued financial support to the Company, as and when needed, so as to enable the Company to continue its operations as a going concem in foreseeable future.

In view of the same, the management of the Company is hopeful of generating sufficient cash flows in the future to meet the Company's financial obligations. Hence,
these financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

42 Pursuant to sub-section 3 of section 129 of Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 6 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and Companies (Accounts) Amendment Rules,
2016 (the “rules”) published vide nofification number G.S.R. 742(E) dated 27 July 2016, the Company has opted not to prepare consolidated financiat statements of the
Company, its subsidiaries and associates for the financial year ended 31 March 2020. With respect to this, the Company has taken necessary steps to ensure
compliance with conditions spaecified in the rules for availing exemption as prescribed.

43 The Company has consistently applied the accounting policies to all periods presented in these financial statements.



Indian Furniture Products Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory informatlon for the period ended 31st Mar 2022
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise Sstated)

44
(a)

(b}

(c)

(d)

(e)

(9)

(h)
U]

Additional disclosures:
Loans and Advances given
There are no dues from directors or promotors or KMP or the related parties as on 31.03.2022 (As on 31.03.2021- Nif)
Compliance with number of layers of companies:
No layers of companies has been established beyond the limits prescribed under clause 87 of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.
Relationship with Struck off Companies:
Balance as on | Balance as on Relatlonship with the Struck off
Name of struck off Company 3110312022 |  31/03/2021 company, If any, to be disclosed
Payables
Amass Industries Privale Limited 0.04 0.04 Vendor
Undisclosed income:
There is no such income which has not been disciosed in the books of accounts. No such income is surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments under Income Tax Act, 1961 for the year ended 31 March 2022 and for the year ended 31 March
2021,
No bank or Financial institutions has declared the company as "Wilfui defaulter".
(1) During the year the Company has availed the loan upto 50 Crores from Bajaj Finane Limited , for which Zuari Global Limited provided part
of its investment as sercurity. Hence charges are created by ZGL.
(i) Alt applicable cases where registration of charges or satisfaction is required with Registrar of Companies have been done. No registration
or satisfaction of charge is pending for the vear ended 31 March 2022 and for the year ended 31 March 2021.
The Company borrowed from Tata capital Finance Limited and Bajaj Finance limited against security of fixed asset and current asset and
from Bajaj Finance against security of Fixed Asset under consortium lead by Tata Finance during the F.Y 2017-18 . The Loan from Tata
Finance was fully repaid , However the charge created will remains till entire consortium loan is repaid. Consequently there is no loan
outstanding against security of current Assets as on the date of Balance sheet and hence there is no obligation for submission of periodical
No scheme of arangements have been approved by the competent authority in terms of Section 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013,
Details in respect of Utilization of Borrowed funds and share premium shall be provided in respect of:
Particulars Description
Transactions where an entity has provided any advance, loan, or invested funds to any other person  |No such transaction has taken place
(s) or entity/ entities, including foreign entities. during the year
Transactions where an entity has received any fund from any person (s) or entity/ entities, inciuding No such transaction has taken place
foreign entity. during the year
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Indlan Furniture Products Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the period ended 31st Mar 2022

(All amounts in  iacs, unless stated otherwise}

{)Ratio Analysis

a. Current Ratio= Current assets divided by Current Liabllities
[Particuiars 31-Mar-22]  31-Mar-21
Current Assels 2,506.59 2,356.99
Current Liabilities 2,910.73 4,740.86
Ratio 0.86 0.50
% change from previous Period/ year 73%

The ratio has increased in FY 2021-22 due to decrease in current Liabilities

b. Debt equity ratio= total debt divided by total shareholder's 's equity

Particulars 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Total Debt 10,5665.77 9,959.40
Total equity (excluding Non- controlling interests) 1,812.95 2,534.38
Ratio 5.82 3.93
% change from previous period/ year 48%

The ratio has increased in FY 2021-22 due 1o decrease in equity due to current year loss

c. Debt service coverage ratio= earnings available for debt services divided by total Interest and principal repayments

Particulars 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Profit{loss) after tax* 72117 -1,042.70
Add: Non cash operating expenses and finance cost
Depreciation and other non cash operating expenses 118.68 124.24
Finance costs 1,295.85 1,327.63
Earnings available for debt service €693.36 409.18
Interest on bormowings 1,295.85 1,327.63
Principal repayments 11,613.26 3,043.74
Total Interest and principal repayments 12,809.11 4,371.37
Ratio 0.05 0.09
% change from Previous period/ year -42%
The ratio has increased in FY 202122 due to increase in Principal repayment
d. Return on equity ratio/ return on investment ratio= Net profit after tax divided by Average shareholder's equity
Particulars 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Net profit/ (loss) after tax* -721.17 -1,042.70
Average shareholders's equity 2,173.67 3,055.69
Ratio -0.33 -0.34
% change from previous period/ year -3%
e. Inventory turnover ratio= Net sales divided by average inventory
Particulars 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Sale of goods (Net sales)* 165.24 262.48
Average Inventory 561.08 915,53
Ratio 0.29 0.29
% change from previous period/ year 3%
f. Trade receivables turnover ratio= Net sales divided by average trade receivables
|Particulars 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Sale of goods (Net sales)* 165.24 262.48
Rental Income 494 .25 494.25
Total Income 659.49 756.73
Average trade receivables 1,340.27 827.95
Ratio 0.49 0.91
|% change from previous period/ year -46%
The ratio has decreased due to Non realisation of current year Trade receivables
rg. Trade Payables turnover ratio= Net Purchases divided by average trade Payables
Particulars 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Net purchases 0.84 107.67
Average trade Payable 1,037.39 1,366.54
Ratio 0.00 0.08
% change from previous period/ vear -99%1

The ratio has decreased in FY 2021-22 due to no significate procurements made during the year and also due to settlement of

Trades payables
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Indian Furniture Products Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the period ended 31st Mar 2022

(All amounts in  lacs, unless stated otherwise)

h. Net capital turnover ratio= Net sales divided by workina capital

Particulars 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Sale of goods ( Net sales)* 165.24 262.48
Average shareholders's equity 2,173.67 3,055.69
Ratio 0.08 0.09
% change from previous period/ year -12%
I. Net profit_turnover ratio= Net profit after tax divided by Net sales
Particulars 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Net profit/(loss) after tax * -721.47 -1,042.70
Sale of goods (Net Sales)* 165.24 262.48
Ratio -4.36 -3.97
% change from previous period/ vear 10%
J. Return on Capital employed = Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT| divided by Capital Employed
Particulars 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Profit/(loss) before tax * -725.40 -1,042.41
Add: finance costs 1,295.85 1,327.63
EBIT* 570.45 285.23
Tangible Net worth (total assets- total liablities- Intangible assets) 1,812.95 2,534.38
Total debt 10,5655.77 9,959.40
Capital Employed 12,368.72 12,493.78
Ratio 0.05 0.02
s change from previous period/ year 102%
The ratio has increased in the F.Y 2021-22 due to improvement in EBIT.
k. Return on Investments(ROI) - Profir Before tax/ Capital Employed
Particulars 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Profit/(loss) before tax * -725.40 -1,042.41
Capital Employed 12,368.72 12,483.78
Ratio -0.06 -0.08
% change from previous period/ year -30%
The ratio has increased in the F.Y 2021-22 due to improvement in EBIT
—
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Indian Furniture Products Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory Information for the period ended 31st Mar 2022
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
(k) Corporate Social Responsibility:

Company is not required to allocate the amount towards the CSR hence disclosures are not applicable.

() Transaction with respect to crypto currency or virtual currency:

Particulars Description
Profit or loss on transactions involving Crypto currency or Virual Currency No transaction during the year
Amount of currency held as at the reporting date No transaction during the year
Deposits or advances from any person for the purpose of trading or investing in Crypto Currency / No transaction during the year
virtual currency

45 During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company reclassified/regrouped previous year's numbers i.e. 31 March 2021 wherever
required,

This is the summary of significant accounting poiicies and other explanatory information referred to in our report of even date

For R 8 J V & Associates For and on behaif of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Indian Furniture Products Limited
Firm’s Registration No.: 02881S
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S Venkateswara Rao
Partner
Membership No.: 027713

Alok Banerjee Nishant Dalal
Director Director
DIN No. 01371033 DIN No. 08972330

il (b

Suchit Rawal Sandeep Kumar

Place: Chennai Company Secretary  (Chief Financial Officer)
Date: 4th May 2022 M.No A56748




- RSJV & ASSOCIATES | O\

. Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditor’s Report

To
The Members of

Indian Furniture Products Limited
Report on the audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Indian Furniture Products Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2022, and the statement of profit and
loss (including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS Financial Statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (“the Ind AS Financial Statements”).

2. Inour opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except
for the effects of the matter described in basis of qualified opinion section of our report the aforesaid Ind
AS Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act, of the
state of affairs (financial position) of the Company as at 31 March 2022, and its losses(financial
performance including other comprehensive income), its changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

3. Financial assets in Note 5(b) to the financial statements include ¥1,125.00 lacs (previous year: 1,125 lacs),
representing inter-company deposit and interest thereon up to 31 March 2010, recoverable from Straight
Curve Ideas Private Limited (“SCIPL”). Based on factors described in Note 41 to the financial statements,
the management is confident of recovery of the aforementioned receivables outstanding as at 31 March
2022. However, in view of the legal uncertainties involved and significant lapse of time, we believe that the
chances of recovery of such amount are remote and the same should be impaired in accordance with
expected credit loss principles of Ind AS 109. Had the Company followed the principles of Ind AS 109, other
expenses and net loss for the year ended 31 March 2022 would have been higher by 1,125 lacs (previous
year: ¥1,125 lacs), and the financial assets and the other equity would have been lower by such amounts.

4. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SAs”) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
Ind AS Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act, and the rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our qualified opinion on the Ind AS Financial Statements.
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Information other than the Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report but does not include the Ind AS
Financial Statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
Ind AS Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. '

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this
auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. Reporting under this section is riot applicable as no other information is
obtained at the date of this auditor’s report.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act, with
respect to the preparation of these ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs(Financial position), losses and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian accounting standards (“Ind AS”) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
orerror.

in preparing the Ind AS Financial Statements, the management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

9,

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS Financial Statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud orerror, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
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10.

11,

12.

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these Ind AS Financiai Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS Financial Statements, whether

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal contro! relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures

that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system with
reference to Ind AS Financial Statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting poiicies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting

and, based on the audit evidence cbtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS Financial Statements, including

the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. '

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit. :

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements of the current year and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

14. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

15. Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)

we have sought and except for the effects of the matters prescribed in the basis of qualified opinion
paragraph, obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

except for the effects of the matters prescribed in the basis of qualified opinion paragraph, in our opinion
proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from
our examination of those books.

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss including other comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity and the cash flow statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

Except for the effects of the matters prescribed in the basis of qualified opinion paragraph, in our
opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS specified under section
133 of the Act;

the matter described in paragraph 3 under the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, in our opinion,
may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the Company;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2022 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2022 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

we have also audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting (IFCoFR) of the Company
ason 31 March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company
for the year ended on that date and our report dated 4th May 2022 as per Annexure B;

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid
by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accocrdance with the provisions of Section
197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under
Section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, we report as under:

the Company, as detailed in note 29 to the financial statements, has disclosed the impact of
pending litigations on its financial position as at 31 March 2022;

the Cornpany did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2022;
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there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2022:

(a) The management has represented to us that no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend to or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. Based on such
audit procedures, considered reasonable and appropriate, adopted by us, nothing has come to our
notice indicating that such representation contains any material misstatement.

(b) The management has also represented to us that no funds have been received by the Company
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend to or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. Based on such audit
procedures, considered reasonable and appropriate, adopted by us, nothing has come to our
notice indicating that such representation contains any material misstatement.

(c ) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e ), as provided under (a) and (b) above,
contain any misstatement.

{(d) The company has not declared any dividend during the year.

ForRS JV & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 02881S

S Venkateswara Rao
Partner

Membership No.: 027713
UDIN: 22027713AIKWYN3377
Place: Chennai

Date: 4th May 2022
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RSJV & ASSOCIATES O

Chartered Accountants

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements of Indian Furniture Products
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Referred to in paragraph 14 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of
even date)

i (a) i. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details
and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment (“PPE”).

ii. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its PPE by which all PPE are verified
in a phased manner. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard
to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. In our opinion, and according to the information
and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of all theimmovable properties (other than
properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favor of
the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company as at the balance
sheet date.

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
revalued its PPE or intangible assets or both during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and
rules made thereunder.

ii. (a) In our opinion, the management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable
intervals during the year, except for goods-in-transit and stocks lying with third parties. For stocks lying
with third parties at the year end, written confirmations have been obtained by the management. No
material discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventories were noticed on such
verification.

(b) The company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of INR 5 crores, in aggregate, at
any points of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of
current assets. According to the information and explanation given to us, the company is not required
to file any quarterly returns or stock statements with financial institutions. The company as not been
sanctioned any working capital facility from the Banks.

iii. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records, the Company has not made any investments, provided guarantee or security or granted any
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability
partnerships or any other parties during the year.

a. The company has not provided loans or advances in the nature of loans, or stood guarantee, or
provided security to any other entity during the year. Accordingly, paragraph No 3(iii) (a)(A), 3(iii)
(a)(B) are not applicable.

b. The company has not provided loans or advances in the nature of loans, or stood guarantee, or
provided security to any other entity during the year. Accordingly, paragraph No 3(iii)(b) is not
applicable.

Flat No. 1, Mahalakshmi Flats, New No. 26 (Old No.13), Tank Bund Road, Nungambakkam, Chennai - 600 034.
Phone No. : 2825 3880, 2823 7269 E-mail : raoandjayaraman@gmail.com



vi.

Vii.

(a)

(b)

c. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, in the case of loans given to Straight Curve Ideas Private Limited, the
principal and interest is overdue as on 31* March 2022.

Amount
u Extent

Name of Entity in Due Date Remarks, if an
(Crores) of Delay v

Company has filed suit
for recovery

Straight Curve Ideas

Private Limited 11.25 31/03/2010 12 Year

d. On the basis of our examination of the records of the company, a sum of INR 11.25 Crores is
overdue for more than ninety days. Details of the same is given below. According to the information
and explanation given to us, the company filed case against Straight Curve Ideas Private Limited
and the same is pending before 14" M.M court at Calcutta.

Amount overdue (in

Crores) Remarks, if any

No of Cases

1 _ 11.25

e. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, there is no loan given falling due during the year, which has been
renewed or extended or fresh loans given to settle the overdue of existing loans given to the same
party

f. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not given any loans either repayable on demand
or without specifying any terms or period of repayment

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any
transactions covered under section 185 and 186 of the act in respect of guarantees given. Further, the
company has complied with the provisions of sections 185 and 186 the Act in respect of loans granted,
investments made and securities provided, as applicable

In our opinion, the Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of
the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1)
section 148 of the Act in respect of Company’s Product/ Services . Accordingly, the provision of clause
3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has
generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax,
provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty
of excise, value added tax, cess and any other material statutory dues applicable to it with the
appropriate authorities

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident fund, employees' state insurance,
income-tax, Goods and Services Tax, duty of customs, cess and other material statutory dues in arrears
as at 31 March 2022 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been deposited as on 31*
March 2022 on account disputes are given below:



Name of the statute | Amount Amount paid | Period to which| Forum where dispute is
(Xinlacs) under Protest| the amount| pending
(Xinlacs) relates
The Finance Act, 1994 | 4.01 - January 2007 to| Central Excise and
December 2007 Service Tax Appellate
Tribunal
The Finance Act, 1994 | 2.48 - July 2008 to May| Adjudicating Authority
2009
The Central Excise Act, | 8.42 0.50 November 2007 to| Hon’ble Madras High
1944 August 2008 Court
The Central Excise Act,| 3.50 - August 2005 to| Adjudicating Authority
1944 July 2006
The Central Excise Act, | 0.15 April 2006 to| Central Excise and
1944 December 2006 Service Tax Appellate
Tribunal
West Bengal Sales Tax| 22.82 - 2003-04 Deputy Commissioner
Act, 1954 (Appeals)
Uttar Pradesh Sales| 94.00 - 2014-15 Deputy Commissioner
Tax Act, 1948 (Appeals)
Uttar Pradesh Sales| 6.16 6.16 2014-15 Deputy Commissioner
Tax Act, 1948 .| (Appeals)
Uttar Pradesh Sales| 0.30 0.30 2015-16 Deputy Commissioner
Tax Act, 1948 (Appeals)
Uttar Pradesh Sales| 103.80 - 2012-13 Appellate Authority
Tax Act, 1948
West Bengal- VAT Act, | 7.63 7.48 2003-04 West Bengal Sales Tax
2002 Revision Board
West Bengal- VAT Act,| 59.03 - 2004-05 West Bengal Sales Tax
2002 Appellate Office
West Bengal- VAT Act, | 11.52 - 2006-07 Joint Commissioner
2002
West Bengal- VAT Act, | 3.94 - 2009-10 West Bengal Sales Tax
2002 Appellate Office
Madhya Pradesh Vat| 9.38 9.38 2014-15 Deputy Commissioner
Act, 2002 (Appeals)
Kerala Value Added| 3.24 0.81 2010-11 Deputy Commissioner
Tax Act, 2003 (Appeals)
Kerala Value Added| 13.70 3.92 2009-10 Deputy Commissioner

Tax Act, 2003

(Appeals)




viii.

Xi.

Name of the statute | Amount Amount paid | Period to which| Forum where dispute is
(Xin lacs) under Protest| the amount| pending
(Xinlacs) relates
Bihar Value Added Tax | 133.69 133.69 2014-15 Commercial Taxes
Act, 2003 Tribunal (Appeals)
Andhra Pradesh Value| 3.27 - 2015-16 Asst Commisioner
Added Tax Act, 2005
Andhra Pradesh Value| 20.89 - 2014-15 Asst Commisioner
Added Tax Act, 2005
Goa Value Added Tax| 1.31 - 2017-18 Asst Commisioner
Act, 2005
Labour Case 31.15 Additional Labour
Court-Chennai

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)
(f)

(a)

(b)

(a)

(b)

(c)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us there were no
transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings to financial
institutions, banks, government and dues to debenture holders or in the payment of interest thereon
to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not been declared wilful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority or any other
lender

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has utilized

the money obtained by way of term loans from bank during the year for the purposes for which they
were obtained.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, funds raised on short term basis
have, prima facie not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the company.

During the year, the company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to
meet the obligations of its associates or joint ventures or subsidiaries

The company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its Joint
ventures or associate companies or subsidiaries.

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting on clause 3(ix)(f) of the order is not applicable.

During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the
Order is not applicable .

No fraud by the company and no material fraud on the company has been noticed or reported during
the year.

No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-
4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no whistle blower complaints
received during the year by the Company.



xii.

Xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

XVii.

xviii.

XiX.

XX.

XXi.

(b)

(b)

(a)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of
the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

In our opinion, the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of its business.

We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the company during
the year, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures

According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion during the year the Company
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its
directors. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company and hence
provisions of section 192 of the Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934 and Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b), (c) of the order is not applicable

According to the information and explanation provided to us, the group to which the company belongs
doesn't have more than one CIC.

The Company has incurred a cash loss of INR 606.72 lacs in the financial year 2021-222 and INR 918.17
in the immediately preceding financial year

There has been no resignation of statutory auditors of the company during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within
a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as
to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company
as and when they fall due

The company is not covered under provisions of Section 135(1) if the act. Accordingly, paragraph
3(xx)(a), (b) of the order is not applicable.

The Company does not have any subsidiary and consolidated financial statements is not applicable to
the Company. Accordingly paragraph No 3 (xxi) of the Act is not applicable

For RS JV & Associates

Charter

Firm’s Registration No.: 02881S

S Venkateswara Rao

Partner

Membership No.: 027713

ed Accountants

M

Place: Chennai
Date: 4th May 2022



Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Indian
Furniture Products Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Independent Auditor’s Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of Indian Furniture Products Limited (‘the
Company’) as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022, we have audited the internal financial
controls over financial reporting (IFCoFR’) of the Company as at that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on internal control over financial reporting stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of the Company’s business, including adherence to the Company'’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's IFCoFR based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (‘ICAI’) and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the
extent applicable to an audit of IFCOFR, and the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’) issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate IFCoFR were established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the IFCoFR
and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of IFCOFR includes obtaining an understanding of
IFCOFR, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s IFCoFR.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's IFCoFR is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's IFCoFR include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.



Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Indian
Furniture Products Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(cont’d)

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

7. Because of the inherent limitations of IFCoFR, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the IFCoFR to future periods are subject to the
risk that the IFCOFR may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has maintained, in all material respects, adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as of March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essentials components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of india.

ForR S J V & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 028813

FRN.No: 028818
CHENNAI-34.

8 Venkateswara Rao
Partner

Membership No.: 027713
UDIN:22027713AIKWYN3377
Place: Chennai

Date: 4" May 2022



